
Beloit City Hall –The Forum
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
April 11, 2017 – 4:00 p.m.

NOTICE AND AGENDA
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE

1. Roll Call

2. Approval of the minutes of the meeting of March 14, 2017

3. Consideration of a Change of Agent on the Class “A” Beer License for Speedway #4293,
2781 Milwaukee Road to Michele Dobson-Miranda for the license period ending June 30,
2017.

4. Consideration of a Class “B” Beer License for Los Corrales Restaurant, LLC, 946 Wisconsin
Avenue, Karla P. Robledo Mendoza, Agent for license period ending June 30, 2017.

5. Consideration of an Application for Operator’s License for Whitney Walraven. (Beloit Police
Department recommendation for denial)

6. Citizen Comments

7. Committee Comments

8. Police Department Comments

9. City Attorney Comments

10. Adjournment

April 5, 2017
Lorena Rae Stottler - City of Beloit, City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


�
Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee | City of Beloit | March 14, 2017

ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE CONTROL COMMITTEE
Beloit City Hall –The Forum
100 State Street, Beloit, WI
March 14, 2017 – 4:00 p.m.

Present: Dennis Baskin, Malissa Cronin, Jerome Jennings, Ron Tilley and Councilor Regina Dunkin
Absent: Chairperson John Metter, Vice Chairperson Tara Tinder, Betty Barnett,
Advisory: Captain Dan Risse, Attorney Elizabeth Krueger (absent)

1. The meeting was called to order at 4:15 p.m. by City Clerk Stottler with a quorum present.
Chairperson Metter and Vice Chairperson Tinder were absent so Clerk Stottler took nominations
from the floor for a president pro tem. Baskin and Cronin nominated Ron Tilley as president pro
tem. No other nominations were made. Tilley became president pro tem for this meeting.

2. Baskin and Jennings made a motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of February
14, 2017. Motion carried 4-0.

3. Consideration of a Change of Agent on the Class “A” Beer License of Wal-Mart Supercenter
#2532, 2785 Milwaukee Road to Jeffrey C. Scheuerell for the licensing period ending June 30,
2017.

Captain Risse stated municipal and state records were checked and the Police Department has
no objection to the appointment of this Agent.

Captain Risse asked Mr. Scheurell to reaffirm his understanding that he can be personally held
responsible for any violations that occur on the property, even if he is not physically present on
the premises. Mr. Scheurell reaffirmed that he understood this responsibility. Jennings and
Cronin moved to recommend approval to the City Council of this application. Motion carried 4-0.

4. Consideration of a Change of Agent on the Class “B” Beer and “Class B” intoxicating Liquor
License of Beloit Professional Baseball Association, Inc. dba Beloit Snappers, 2301 Skyline
Drive, from Timothy Hinds to Seth Egan Flolid for the licensing period ending June 30, 2017.

Captain Risse stated municipal and state records were checked and the Police Department has
no objection to the appointment of this Agent.

Captain Risse asked Mr. Flolid to reaffirm his understanding that he can be personally held
responsible for any violations that occur on the property, even if he is not physically present on
the premises. Mr. Flolid reaffirmed that he understood this responsibility. Cronin and Jennings
moved to recommend approval to the City Council of this application. Motion carried 4-0.

5. Consideration of an Application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License

for Inked Sports Bar, LLC, located at 443 E Grand Avenue, Justin A. Christophersen, Agent.



�
Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee | City of Beloit | March 14, 2017

Captain Risse stated municipal and state records were checked and the Police Department has
no objection to the applicant.

Captain Risse asked Mr. Christophersen to reaffirm his understanding that he can be personally
held responsible for any violations that occur on the property, even if he is not physically present
on the premises. Mr. Christophersen reaffirmed that he understood this responsibility. Mr.
Tilley inquired about whether there were any cameras on the property. Mr. Christophersen
indicated several cameras were installed, including some on the exterior of the property. Mr.
Christophersen also explained that he’s hired bouncers for evening hours. Baskin and Cronin
moved to recommend approval to the City Council of this application. Motion carried 4-0.

6. Consideration of an Application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License
for JT Hankins LLC, d/b/a The Restaurant at “Muni”, located at 1611 Hackett Street (Krueger-
Haskell Golf Course Clubhouse), Joelle K. Hankins, Agent.

Captain Risse stated municipal and state records were checked and the Police Department has
no objection to the applicant.

Captain Risse asked Ms. Hankins to reaffirm her understanding that she can be personally held
responsible for any violations that occur on the property, even if she is not physically present on
the premises. Ms. Hankins reaffirmed that she understood this responsibility. Baskin and
Jennings moved to recommend approval to the City Council of this application. Motion carried
4-0.

7. Citizen Comments: None

8. Committee Comments.

9. Police Department Comments: Captain Risse briefly discussed calls for service at local
licensed premises and included separate police reports. Mr. Tilley asked about an update on
Turtle Tap and Captain Risse stated the investigation is still ongoing.

10. City Attorney Comments: None

11. Baskin and Jennings made a motion to adjourn at 4:35 p.m. Motion carried 4-0.

_________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Consideration of a Change of Agent on the Class “A” Beer License for Speedway #4293, located at 2781
Milwaukee Road, Beloit to Sheryl L. Latronico for license period ending June 30, 2017.

Date: April 4, 2017

Presenter(s): Lorena Rae Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Speedway #4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road, in the City of Beloit has requested that Sheryl L. Latronico be
appointed the new agent for the license period ending June 30, 2017.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Speedway #4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road, in the City of Beloit, has appointed Sheryl L. Latronico as
Agent via corporate letter dated March 2, 2017, replacing Jane M. Erbe.

2. A complete application with fees has been submitted to the Clerk’s office and is being placed on the April 11
th

ABLCC agenda for consideration and recommendation to the City Council.

Conformance to Strategic Plan: N/A

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends that City Council approve of the Change of Agent.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Corporate Letter appointing agent, Schedule of Appointment, Auxiliary Questionnaire and Supplemental Questionnaire



















CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Application of a new Class “B” Beer license for Los Corrales Restaurant, LLC (d/b/a Los
Corrales Restaurant) located at 946 Wisconsin Avenue, Karla P. Robledo Mendoza, Agent, for
the license period ending June 30, 2017.

Date: April 3, 2017

Presenter(s): Lorena Rae Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:
Karla P. Robledo Mendoza, the President and agent for Los Corrales Restaurant, LLC is applying for the
license. This is a new owner at 946 Wisconsin Avenue (formerly Victoria Rose LLC who held a Class “B”
Beer and Class “C” wine license for the current license year). Because there are not quota limits on Class
“B” licenses any new applicant will require new consideration and if approved receives a new license.
Given the close proximity to the renewal deadline of April 15

th
, if approved, a license will be issued that is

only good through June 30, 2017, the applicant will need to immediately file for renewal for the July 1
2017 through June 30, 2018 license period.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. This business (formerly Victoria Rose) is located at 946 Wisconsin Avenue, in the City of Beloit.
2. Karla P. Robledo Mendoza is applying for a Class “B” Beer license. The applicant has been

provided the DOR Pub 302 and other documentation on applying for a liquor license and
understanding the responsibility that comes with the application.

3. Ms. Robledo Mendoza has completed the necessary paperwork with the WI DOR and has
supplied my office with a complete application for the referral and consideration by the ABLCC
and the City Council.

4. The ABLCC will review this application at their April 11
th

regular meeting.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its
impact on the City’s mission.): Taking action regarding this license conforms to the City’s Strategic
Plan by encouraging economic development in the entrepreneurial community while applying sound,
sustainable practices to promote high quality development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program
related to how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-
municipality guidelines.): N/A

Action required/Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council refer this application to the
ABLCC for review and recommendation

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: Action on this item does not have a significant impact on the City’s budget.

Attachments: Original Alcohol Beverage License Application for a Class “B” Beer License.























CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO ABLCC

Topic: CONSIDERATION OF AN APPLICATION FOR AN OPERATOR’S LICENSE FROM WHITNEY WALRAVEN

Date: April 12, 2017

Presenter: Captain Dan Risse Department: Police

Overview/Background Information:

Whitney L. Walraven has applied for an Alcohol Beverage Operator’s (Bartender’s) License on February 21, 2017. She completed an
application, showed proof of completion of Safe Server Beverage Course, presented a satisfactory ID and paid the application fee.
Her application was forwarded to the Beloit Police Department for review and recommendation. Captain Risse submitted a
memorandum to the Clerk’s Office on February 28, 2017 denying her request for a license due to the convictions found during her
background investigation. A review of Walraven’s record shows the following:

Conviction Date (Violation Date) Jurisdiction Offense

07/15/2003; (03/02/2003) Winnebago County, Illinois Operating While
Under the Influence

05/07/2015; (04/04/2015) Rock County, Wisconsin No Insurance

02/02/2016; (12/18/2015) McHenry County, Illinois Implied Consent

01/04/2017; (12/18/2015) McHenry County, Illinois Operating While
Under the Influence

The City sent a letter to Walraven on March 2, 2017 informing her of the denial. Walraven sent an email objecting to the denial to
Captain Risse on March 10, 2017. Captain Risse did not recommend changing the Department’s recommendation for denial
Walraven had opted to appeal the denial. Walraven submitted her written appeal on March 31, 2017.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Walraven applied for an operator’s license on February 21, 2017.
2. The Police Department conducted an investigation of her background and has recommended denial of the license due to 2

Operating While Under the Influence convictions in the State of Illinois.
3. Walraven has chosen to appeal this determination and submitted her appeal.
4. The application for an operator’s license is before the ABLCC for a recommendation to the City Council.
5. See attached guidance from the League of Wisconsin Municipalities for standard of review for alcohol beverage licenses.

Action required/Recommendation:
Recommendation to the City Council to approve or deny the application

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
There is no fiscal impact on the City Budget

Attachments:
Wisconsin League of Municipalities Guidance related to Eligibility Qualifications for Applicants
Recommendation from the Police Department
Correspondence with Walraven
Appeal paperwork submitted by Walraven



Municipal Licensing and Regulation of Alcohol Beverages

                                                                                                  League of Wisconsin Municipalities 1

II. Retail Licenses and Permits / E. Licensee Qualifications

        E. Licensee Qualifications

                      1. Age

                        Individuals, all partners (including limited partners), the officers, directors, and

agents of corporations, the members, managers and agents of limited liability companies and the

officers, directors and agents of nonprofit organizations must be of legal drinking age, except

that a person may obtain an operator’s license if he or she is at least 18. 

                      2. Arrest or conviction record

                        Individuals, all partners (including limited partners), the officers, directors, and

agents of corporations, the members, managers and agents of limited liability companies and the

officers, directors and agents of nonprofit organizations also:

                                  a. May not have an arrest or conviction record subject to the Wisconsin Fair

Employment Act (secs. 111.321, 111.322 and 111.335). Sec. 125.04(5)(a)1. [But see the

following Note and items c. and d.] This qualification also applies to corporations and

partnerships. However, a corporation with a conviction record may be issued a license if the

corporation has terminated its relationship with the individual whose actions directly contributed

to the conviction. Sec. 125.04(5)(c).

                        [Note: The Wisconsin Fair Employment Act (secs. 111.321, 111.322 and

111.335) prohibits discrimination in licensing and employment based on an arrest or conviction

record. However, it is not employment discrimination to deny or refuse to renew a license

because of a pending arrest record or a conviction record, if the circumstances of the charges

substantially relate to the alcohol beverage licensing activity. Sec. 111.335. Intoxicating Liquors

890 (1991).]

                                  b. Municipal officials may check to see if an applicant has a criminal record

by requesting the Crime Information Bureau within the Wisconsin Department of Justice to

conduct a criminal history search of the applicant. The Record Check Unit within the Crime

Information Bureau can be reached by dialing (608)266-5764. Municipalities must pay a fee for

each record check. Requests for record checks must be submitted in writing by mail or online

using a record request form provided by the Crime Information Bureau. The Bureau does not

accept record check requests by telephone or fax.

                                  c. May not be a “habitual law offender.” Sec. 125.04(5)(b). 

                        [Note: The term “habitual” refers to multiple convictions (or pending charges).

State ex rel. Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139 Wis.2d 788, 407 N.W.2d 901 (1987). It seems likely



Municipal Licensing and Regulation of Alcohol Beverages

                                                                                                  League of Wisconsin Municipalities 2

that two offenses within a relatively short time period would qualify a person as an “habitual

offender.” Intoxicating Liquors #890 (1991). The term offender refers to a person with civil

violations such as ordinance convictions and/or misdemeanor convictions (or pending charges)

which substantially relate to the alcohol beverage licensing activity. The courts have interpreted

“habitual offender” to include a person who testified under oath that he had habitually violated

the law, even though there were no convictions for the offenses. City of Oak Creek, supra.]

                                  d. May not have been convicted of a felony which substantially relates to the

alcohol beverage licensing activity. Wis. Stat. sec. 125.04(5)(b). 

                        [Note: To harmonize the above provisions (items a. , c. and d.) concerning the

qualification of a person with an arrest or conviction record, it appears that although one felony

which substantially relates to the licensing activity would lead to nonlicensing, for convictions

other than felonies, such as ordinance and misdemeanor convictions, there would have to be

repeat offenses to make the person an “habitual law offender.” Similarly, for a pending charge

(i.e., an arrest record) it appears that a license may not be denied for one pending charge unless

that charge is for a felony. Intoxicating Liquors 890 (1991).]

                      3. Seller’s permit

                        All applicants for retail licenses must provide proof, as required by sec. 77.61(11),

that they are in good standing for sales tax purposes (i.e., hold a seller’s permit). Sec.

125.04(5)(a)4. This requirement does not apply to applicants for operator’s licenses and

manager’s licenses. It also does not apply to applicants for temporary Class “B” licenses or

temporary “Class B” licenses who are not required to hold a seller’s permit. Sec. 125.04(5)(d)3.

                      4. Residency

                        Individuals, all natural persons in a partnership and the agents of corporations and

limited liability companies are subject to the following residency requirement: Sec.

125.04(5)(a)(2).

                                  a. 90 days continuously in this state prior to the date of application.

                                  b. The officers and directors of corporations and the members or managers of

limited liability companies are not subject to the 90-day state residency requirement. 

                        [Note: The: following may be used to verify residency in Wisconsin for the

required time period]

                                                • Voter registration.

                                                • Motor vehicle registration.

                                                • Driver’s license.



Municipal Licensing and Regulation of Alcohol Beverages

                                                                                                  League of Wisconsin Municipalities 3

                                                • Residential lease or purchase agreements.

                                                • Income tax records.

                      5. Responsible beverage server training course

                        Individuals, partners and agents of corporations and limited liability companies

must have successfully completed a DOR-approved responsible beverage server training course

(see http://www.revenue.wi.gov/training/alcSellerServer.html for providers) unless:

                                  a. The person is renewing a license; or

                                  b. Within the past two years the applicant held a manager’s or operator’s

license, or held or was agent of a corporation or limited liability company that held a Class “A”

beer, Class “B” beer, “Class A” liquor, “Class B” liquor, or “Class C” wine license; or

                                  c. Within the past two years the person successfully completed such a

training course.

                      6. Partnerships

                                  a. The names of all partners, including limited partners, must be revealed in

the application for a beer and/or liquor license. Brill v. Salzwedel, 235 Wis. 551, 292 N.W. 908

(1940); Sponholz v. Meyer, 270 Wis. 288, 70 N.W.2d 619 (1955); Informal opinion, 5-21-85,

Attorney Sheree Robertson of DOR; Intoxicating Liquors 878 (1988).

                                  b. Adding or dropping of a partner requires application for a new license.

The governing body must be given the right to decide on the eligibility of any remaining or new

partners for an alcohol beverage license. Informal opinion, 8-6-63, George Thompson, Attorney

General.

                                  c. In general, the 90-day state residency requirement applies to all partners in

a partnership, including limited partners. See Robertson opinion and Intoxicating Liquors 878

(1988), above at a. However, the Department has concluded in at least one instance involving a

complicated, multi-tiered ownership structure that it was appropriate to apply the qualification

standards applicable to corporate applicants to a partnership applicant. In that case, therefore, it

was determined that the 90-day state residency requirement did not apply to the partnership

applicant. Informal opinion, 1-23-97, Attorney John Evans of DOR.

                                  d. A partnership may include a corporation, limited liability company or

another partnership. A partnership consists of two or more “persons” which may involve a

corporation or a partnership as one of the partners.

                      7. Corporations and limited liability companies

                                  a. Corporations and limited liability companies are eligible for the following



Municipal Licensing and Regulation of Alcohol Beverages

                                                                                                  League of Wisconsin Municipalities 4

licenses:

                                    • Class “B” beer. Sec. 125.26(2).

                                    • “Class B” liquor. Sec. 125.51(3)(c).

                                    • Reserve “Class B” liquor. Sec. 125.51(4)(a)4.

                                    • “Class A” liquor. Sec. 125.51(2)(b).

                                    • Class “A” beer. Sec. 125.25(2)(a).

                                    • “Class C” wine. Sec. 125.51(3m)(c).

                                  b. Foreign corporations (i.e., out-of-state corporations) and foreign (i.e.,

out-of-state) limited liability companies are ineligible for “Class C” wine licenses. Wis. Stat. sec.

125.51(3m)(c).

                                  c. The 90-day state residency requirement is inapplicable to the officers and

directors of corporations and the members or managers of limited liability companies. Sec.

125.04(5)(c).

                                  d. The agents of corporations and limited liability companies must meet the

90-day state residency requirement. See sub. 4 , above.

                                  e. All officers and directors of a corporation and members or managers of a

limited liability company must be of legal drinking age and not have an arrest or conviction

record subject to the Fair Employment Act. See sub. 2 , above.

                                  f. Business corporations organized under ch. 180 are only required to have

one officer. Sec. 180.0840(3). Nonstock nonprofit corporations organized under ch. 181 are

required to have two or more officers. Sec. 181.25. Limited liability companies are only required

to have one member. Sec. 183.0201.

                                  g. Corporate and limited liability company agents: Sec. 125.04(6).

                                              i. All corporations and limited liability companies applying for an

alcohol beverage license must appoint an agent. 

                                    [Note: The Department requires, under its powers, appointment of an

agent for an association, even though this is not specified in the Statutes.]

                                            ii. A license cannot be issued to a corporation or limited liability

company until the agent has been approved by the municipality. In addition to meeting the age,

arrest or conviction record and residency requirements, “the agent must, with respect to

character, record and reputation, be satisfactory to the issuing authority.” Sec. 125.04(6)(a)1.



Municipal Licensing and Regulation of Alcohol Beverages

                                                                                                  League of Wisconsin Municipalities 5

                                            iii. The agent must be named in the license or permit and must be

given full authority and control over the licensed premises and over all commercial activities on

the premises relating to alcohol beverages. Sec. 125.04(6)(a)2.

                                            iv. Steps to be taken in the appointment of a successor agent: Sec.

125.04(6)(b).

                                                            • The corporation or limited liability company must

immediately notify the municipal clerk in writing of the appointment of a new agent and the

reason for cancellation of the previous agent.

                                                            • The newly appointed agent may act in that capacity until

approved or disapproved.

                                                            • The new agent must complete Forms AT-104 (Schedule for

Appointment of Agent) and AT-103 (Auxiliary Questionnaire) and file them with the municipal

clerk.

                                                            • The license of the corporation or limited liability company

shall cease to be in force if prior to the next regular or special meeting of the governing body, the

municipal clerk “receives notice of disapproval of the successor agent” by a law enforcement

officer of the municipality. 

            Sec. 125.04(6)(c). [Consult your attorney, however, before relying on this provision,

since it is the governing body that must approve the change.] 

                                                            • If the change is approved by the governing body, the

municipal clerk must amend the license to reflect the change of agent.

                                  h. A corporation or limited liability company may apply for an alcohol

beverage license prior to registration with the Department of Financial Institutions. The license

may be granted by the governing body, but it cannot be issued until the foreign/domestic

corporation or limited liability company has been registered to do business in this state.

                                              i. If a corporation or limited liability company changes its name or

its officers, directors, stockholders or members or managers:

                                              i. The entity need not submit a new application for a license.

                                              ii. The municipal clerk must be notified within 10 days about any

such change. Sec. 125.04(3)(h). Any new officers, directors, members or managers must

complete and file with the municipal clerk a Form AT-103 (Auxiliary Questionnaire). A new

agent must complete Forms AT-104 (Schedule for Appointment of Agent) and AT-103. See g.

4., above. After approval by the governing body, the municipal clerk must amend the entity’s



Municipal Licensing and Regulation of Alcohol Beverages

                                                                                                  League of Wisconsin Municipalities 6

license to reflect any change of name or change of agent.

            [Note: Questions about whether the same or a new corporation is involved may be

resolved by requesting a copy of the forms filed by the corporation with the state agency that

oversees such records, currently the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions (DFI).]


















































































































	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Change of Agent for Speedway #4293
	Application for Class "B" Beer at Los Corrales Restaurant
	Consideration of an Application for an Operator's License from Whitney Walraven
	April Police Department Report

